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Attorneys for Plaintiffs
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

AISLEY DAVIS, JULIUS YARBOUGH, CASE NO.
VALERIE ROBINS, MARISOL
SCHARON and KATHRYN BOWMAN, CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR FRAUD,
individuals, on behalf of themselves, the DECEIT, AND/OR MISREPRESENTATION;
general public, and those similarly situated, | VIOLATION OF THE CONSUMER LEGAL
REMEDIES ACT; FALSE ADVERTISING;

Plaintiffs, NEGLIGENT MISREPRESENTATION; AND
UNFAIR, UNLAWFUL, AND DECEPTIVE
V. TRADE PRACTICES
BEIERSDORF, INC., JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
Defendant.
INTRODUCTION

1. Plaintiffs Aisley Davis, Julius Yarbough, Valerie Robins, Marisol Scharon and
Kathryn Bowman, by and through their counsel, bring this Class Action Complaint against
Beiersdorf, Inc. (referred to as “Defendant” or “Beiersdorf), on behalf of themselves, and those
similarly situated, for fraud, deceit, and/or misrepresentation; violation of the Consumer Legal
Remedies Act; false advertising; negligent misrepresentation; unfair, unlawful, and deceptive
trade practices, and unjust enrichment. The following allegations are based upon information
and belief, including the investigation of Plaintiffs’ counsel, unless stated otherwise.

2. This case concerns Beiersdorf’s “Nourish by Nature” and “Naturally Good”
products sold under its “Nivea” brand, including Nivea “Nourish by Nature” lotions and Nivea
“Naturally Good” skin creams and related skin products, which Defendant sells using the false

claim that they are comprised of specific proportions of “natural origin ingredients” (e.g., “99%
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Natural Origin Ingredients”) or “naturally-derived ingredients (e.g., “98% Naturally Derived
Ingredients”). The products include, but are not limited to, Beiersdorf’s Nivea “Nourish by
Nature” body lotions and Nivea “Naturally Good” lotions, skin creams, and related skin products
(collectively, “the Products”).

3. Defendant affirmatively represents that the Products have “X% Natural Origin
Ingredients” (e.g., “99% Natural Origin” for the Nivea “Naturally Good” Organic Aloe Vera
Radiance Cream) or “X% Naturally Derived Ingredients” (e.g., “98% Naturally Derived
Ingredients” for Nivea “Nourish by Nature” lavender-enriched body lotion). Defendant makes
this claim on the front labels of the Products’ packaging. Defendant also represents to consumers
that the Products are “X% naturally derived ingredients” on its website and related third-party
retail websites. However, Defendant’s representation regarding the Products is false and/or
misleading.

4. Defendant’s labeling suggests to reasonable consumers nationwide that X% or
more (generally, > 95%) of the ingredients in the Products originate in nature or are derived
naturally.

5. In truth, almost all of the ingredients in the Products are synthetic, not natural.
They do not originate in nature and are not derived naturally. Rather, they are of industrial-origin.
Accordingly, even accounting for the fact that lotions and moisturizers are roughly 80% water,
the Products are only approximately 80-85% natural origin or naturally-derived ingredients. As
such, the “% Natural Origin” and “% Naturally-Derived” claims are false.

6. In short, the Products do not contain the advertised proportion of natural
ingredients. Many of the exact same ingredients are used in other skin products and are not—
and never have been—considered “natural-origin.” Even when these compounds can occur in
nature (e.g., citric acid), they are not generally available from natural sources on the scale
required for use in mass-produced products and instead created through industrial chemical
processes for use in the Products.

7. Beiersdorf’s practice is also inherently deceptive and misleading. Based on

Plaintiff’s investigation, Beiersdorf is labeling the Products as X% Natural-Origin” or “X%

.
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Naturally Derived” ingredients based on use of the proprietary standard ISO 16128 developed
by the British Standards Institute (“BSI”, a private, industry-based group). That standard uses a
Byzantine method to calculate “natural origin” and “% natural-origin” in which one compares
the mass of the atoms that were in a “natural” starting material to the total mass in an industrially-
produced chemical made from that starting material to calculate the “% natural-origin” and/or
“% naturally-derived.” By doing this, the manufacturer is able to gaslight consumers by
characterizing synthetic chemicals as “naturally derived” or “natural origin.”

8. Even if an average consumer could obtain the ISO 16128 standard (by paying
fees of over $400 to the British Standards Institute), they would not understand it, because it is
complicated and written for chemists. Indeed, the British Standard Institute acknowledged as
much in the ISO 16128 publications, stating “Neither [ISO 16128-1 nor this document [i.e., ISO
16128-2] addresses product communication (e.g. claims and labelling), . . . characteristics of
packaging materials or regulatory requirements applicable for cosmetics.” In other words, the
BSI states in the standard that it is not intended for use in product labeling and product
communications. Despite this clear instruction not to use the standard for labeling claims or
advertisements, Defendant has deceptively chosen to do so.

9. Plaintiffs purchased the Products believing they were purchasing skin care
products made predominantly of ingredients obtained directly from natural sources or derived in
a natural manner, like aloe. Plaintiffs purchased the skin care products with “X% natural
origin”/“naturally-derived ingredients” believing that the “natural origin”/“naturally derived
ingredients” made the products better for the environment, safer, and better for their skin than
products comprised of synthetic, industrially-produced chemicals.

10.  Through its marketing and advertising, Defendant intentionally misled and
deceived Plaintiffs to believe that the Products were comprised of specific high proportions of
ingredient directly derived from or originating in natural sources (e.g., extracted directly from
plants) and had the attendant perceived benefits of natural ingredients.

11.  Defendant’s marketing and advertising representations and omissions concerning

the Products were directed at inducing, and did induce, Plaintiffs and Class Members to purchase
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the Products when they would not have otherwise, or at higher prices than they would otherwise
have paid, had they known the truth of the matter.

12.  Defendant knew that the Products it sold were not comprised of the advertised
proportions of natural-origin/naturally derived ingredients, and that its advertising materials
were false and deceptive in describing the Products as comprising the advertised proportions of
natural origin/naturally derived ingredients.

13.  Despite knowing that its advertisements falsely and deceptively stated that the
Products were made of “X% natural-origin/naturally derived ingredients,” Defendant refused
and failed to change the labels, remove the false representations, or otherwise inform Plaintiffs,
those similarly situated and/or the general public of the Products true composition with respect
to natural-origin ingredients.

PARTIES

14.  Plaintiff Aisley Davis is, and at all times alleged in this Class Action Complaint
was, an individual and a resident of Douglas City, in Eureka County, California. Ms. Davis
intends to remain in California and makes her permanent home there.

15.  Plaintiff Julius Yarbough is, and at all times alleged in this Class Action
Complaint was, an individual and a resident of Vallejo in Solano County, California. Ms. Scharon
intends to remain in California and makes her permanent home there.

16.  Plaintiff Valerie Robins is, and at all times alleged in this Class Action Complaint
was, an individual and a resident of Vacaville in Solano County, California. Ms. Scharon intends
to remain in California and makes her permanent home there.

17.  Plaintiftf Marisol Scharon is, and at all times alleged in this Class Action
Complaint was, an individual and a resident of San Pedro in Los Angeles County, California.
Ms. Scharon intends to remain in California and makes her permanent home there.

18.  Plaintiff Kathryn Bowman is, and at all times alleged in this Class Action
Complaint was, an individual and a resident of Carmichael in Sacramento County, California.

Ms. Bowman intends to remain in California and makes her permanent home there.
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19.  Defendant Beiersdorf, Inc. is a corporation formed under the laws of the state of
Delaware, having its principal place of business in Stamford, CT. Beiersdorf, Inc. markets and
sells Nivea products across the United States, in particular via the Beiersdorf website, which it

operates.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

20.  This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 28
U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2). The aggregate amount in controversy exceeds $5,000,000, exclusive of
interest and costs; and Plaintiffs and Defendant are citizens of different states.

21.  The injuries, damages and/or harm upon which this action is based, occurred or
arose out of activities engaged in by Defendant within, affecting, and emanating from, the State
of California. Defendant regularly conducts and/or solicits business in, engages in other
persistent courses of conduct in, and/or derives substantial revenue from products provided to
persons in the State of California. Defendant has engaged, and continues to engage, in substantial
and continuous business practices in the State of California and is a resident of California with
its principal place of business within the State of California.

22. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2) because a
substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to the claims occurred in the state of
California, including within this District.

23. In accordance with California Civil Code Section 1780(d), Ms. Scharon
concurrently files herewith a declaration establishing that she purchased Beiersdorf’s “Nourish
by Nature” Nivea body lotion in San Pedro, California in November of 2024. (Ms. Scharon’s
declaration is attached hereto as Appendix A.)

24.  In accordance with California Civil Code Section 1780(d), Ms. Davis
concurrently files herewith a declaration establishing that he purchased Beiersdorf’s “Naturally
Good” Night Cream and “Naturally Good” Biodegradable Wipes in Redding, California in or
around June of 2024. (Ms. Davis’ declaration is attached hereto as Appendix B.)

25.  Plaintiffs accordingly allege that jurisdiction and venue are proper in this Court.
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SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

The Market for Natural Beauty Products

26.  The market for “natural” beauty products, including skin care, skin care and
cosmetics, is large and growing. See, e.g., Soyoung Kim and Yoo-Kyoung Seock, IMPACT OF
HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONSCIOUSNESS ON YOUNG FEMALE CONSUMERS’ ATTITUDE
TOWARDS AND PURCHASES OF NATURAL BEAUTY PRODUCTS, Int. J. Consumer Studies, 33:627-
238 (2009) (reporting global sales of $7B for “natural” beauty products in 2007, with expected
growth rate of ~9% per year). Surveys of consumers in the United States and Europe show
consistent demand for “natural” products, including those with natural ingredients. See, e.g.,
Seyoung Kim, IMPACT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONSCIOUSNESS ON YOUNG FEMALE
CONSUMERS’ ATTITUDE TOWARDS AND PURCHASES OF NATURAL BEAUTY PRODUCTS, Int. J.
Consumer Studies, 33:627-238 (2009); Nora Amberg and Csaba Fogarassy, GREEN CONSUMER
BEHAVIOR IN THE COSMETICS MARKET, Resources, 8:137 (2009) (“Currently, marketing trends
are turning towards natural solutions for cosmetics. . . .”); Nora Amberg, APPEARANCE OF
NATURAL COSMETICS IN CONSUMER BEHAVIOR RELATED TO COSMETICS IN HUNGARY, Visegrad
J. Bioeconomy and Sustainable Dev., Vol. 12(2) at 71-74 (2023) (“Today, the development of
healthier and more environmentally conscious lifestyle is increasing consumer perceptions and
interest in natural products in particular, including cosmetics.”).

27.  This desire for natural products stems from two material beliefs among
consumers: (i) the belief that natural products are safer and/or better for one’s body and (ii) the
belief that natural products are better for the environment. See Kim, Int. J. Cons. Studies at
abstract; Amberg, Resources at 2-3 (discussing association of natural cosmetics with “healthy
lifestyle” and “environmental protection and sustainability questions”).

28.  Studies show that these consumer preferences translate into increased purchases
of “natural” products. See Kim, Int. J. Cons. Studies at 627 (finding environmentally-conscious
and health-conscious consumers were more likely to purchase “natural” products, and were
willing to pay more for them); Amberg, Visegrad J. Bioeconomy and Sustainable Dev., at 72

(70% of respondents willing to pay more for a cosmetic with a natural ingredient).
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29.  According to the survey data available, consumers who display these purchasing
preferences, particularly environmentally-conscious consumers, place high importance on “no
use of chemical ingredients.” Kim, Int. J. Cons. Studies at 633; see also id. at 636 (“This finding
is consistent with the observation made in a previous survey of UK consumers, conducted by
Organic Monitor (2007) that consumers; major concern in the purchase of natural and organic
beauty products is absence of synthetic chemicals.”). In this context, “chemical ingredients”
means synthetic or man-made chemicals. See, e.g., Oxford Dictionary (“‘chemical” = “a
compound or substance that has been purified or prepared, especially artificially.”), available via
Google.com (accessed Jan. 18, 2024); Mirriam-Webster Dictionary (“a substance obtained by a
chemical process or producing a chemical effect”), available via https://www.merriam-
webster.com/dictionary/chemical (accessed Jan. 18, 2024); see also Jiali Zhang and Meijuan
Zhou, Factors Influencing Consumers’ Purchasing Behavior in Natural Cosmetics, Univ.
Uppsala Master’s Thesis (2009), at 1 (defining “natural” products as those “mainly made of plant
materials from agricultural-based production”; Amberg, Resources at 2-3 (“Green or natural
cosmetics are made out of natural resources, without the use of chemicals, coloring additives, or
other non-natural mixtures.”).

30. At the same time, consumers’ ability to discern between truthful and false or
deceptive claims is limited. Jiali Zhang and Meijuan Zhou, Factors Influencing Consumers’
Purchasing Behavior in Natural Cosmetics, Univ. Uppsala Master’s Thesis (2009), at abstract
(““Although consumers’ need for a healthy and sustainable lifestyle drives natural cosmetic
consumption, various claims of natural cosmetics make consumers confused and distrustful.”
Noting further that “lack of knowledge” and ‘“non-harmonized certifications” led to
“inconsistency between consumers’ purchasing intention and actual behavior.”); Kim, Int. J.
Cons. Studies at 635 (finding health and environmentally-conscious consumers “did not spend
more time and effort than others on comparing alternative purchase options”). In other words,
while health and environmentally conscious consumers wish to purchase appropriate natural
products, they do not typically look beyond label claims to ensure those claims are true, and

often lack the expertise and/or information necessary to determine the veracity of the claims.
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31.  Accordingly, manufacturers of beauty products are trending toward aggressively
marketing their products as natural. See Zhang at 1 (noting cosmetics companies were actively
developing natural products to satisfy the “inevitable trend” to meet this demand). These
companies’ advertising claims are often false or deceptive. This is true particularly for

Beiersdorf, as described below.

Beiersdorf Markets Its “Natural Origin” and “Naturally-Derived” Products to Consumers
Who Prefer Natural Products

32. As noted above, the Products that are the subject of this Complaint are
Beiersdorf’s “Nourish by Nature” and “Naturally Good” skin care products sold under its Nivea
brand, including, without limitation, all varieties of “Nourish by Nature” and “Naturally Good”
body and skin lotions, moisturizers, and skin care products, including:

e “Nourish by Nature” Nourishing Avocado Enriched Body Lotion with “98%
Naturally-Derived Ingredients* & Purified Water”;

e “Nourish by Nature” Calming Lavender Enriched Body Lotion with “98%
Naturally-Derived Ingredients* & Purified Water”;

e “Nourish by Nature” Hydrating Aloe Enriched Body Lotion with “98% Naturally-
Derived Ingredients* & Purified Water”;

e “Naturally Good” Organic Aloe Vera Body Lotion “98% Ingredients of Natural
Origin*”;

e “Naturally Good” Organic Aloe Vera Micellar Face Wash “98% Ingredients of
Natural Origin*”;

e “Naturally Good” Bio Aloe Vera Deodorant with “95% Ingredients of Natural
Origin*”;

e “Naturally Good” Natural Lavender Body Lotion with “98% Ingredients of Natural
Origin*”;

e “Naturally Good” Organic Argan Oil Regenerating Night Cream “99% of Natural

e
Origin**”’;
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e “Naturally Good” Bio Aloe Vera Deodorant with “95% Ingredients of Natural
Origin*”;
e “Naturally Good” Jasmine & Chamomile Scent and Touch of Bio Oil Shower Gel
“98% of Natural Origin.”
A full list of the Products is included in Attachment C to this complaint.

33.  Each of the Products contains a representation that the Product is comprised of a
specific percentage of “Natural Origin” or ‘“Naturally-Derived” ingredients. (e.g., “98%
Naturally-Derived Ingredients* & Purified Water”; “95% Ingredients of Natural Origin*”’; “99%
of Natural Origin**”). The exact verbiage varies between products, but the overall impression
and meaning is consistent across products.

34.  This representation is placed on both the front labels of the product packaging for
all the Products. It is in large, bold font on the front of the package, in a prominent location near
the center of the Product Label.

35.  One or two asterisks follow the phrases ‘“Naturally-Derived” and “Natural
Origin,” respectively, depending on the exact Product at issue. None of the Products have an
asterisk statement on the front label explaining the meaning of the asterisk. None of the asterisks
direct the reader to the ingredient list either. Instead, the asterisk(s) lead to a statement on the
back label.

36.  For those products that use the phrase “Naturally-Derived*”, the back-label
asterisk statement is “*Naturally derived ingredients have undergone processing while retaining
a majority of their natural molecular structure.”

37.  For those products that use the phrase “Natural Origin*”, the back-label asterisk
statement is “*Ingredients sourced from nature retaining greater than 50% of their molecular
structure (natural state) after being processed, including water.” For some of the Products, such
as the “Naturally Good” night and day creams, this “back label” statement actually appears on
the underside of the product, separately from the ingredient list. On other products, such as the

Micellar Wash, the asterisk does not lead to any visible asterisk statement.
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38.  Appendix C includes the front and back labels for each of the “Nourish by
Nature” and “Naturally Good” Products.

39.  Arepresentative image of the “Nourish by Nature” Calming Lavender Enriched

Body Lotion with “98% Naturally-Derived Ingredients* & Purified Water” is shown below:

S oe%)

)
' NOURISH ¥

by NATURE"
'
v
' 8
,“,}- Body Lotion
S RD v Skin
V.
%
)
QN

R ] %
o, ®
169 FL. OZ. 500mL

40.  The front label of the “Nourish by Nature” Calming Lavender Enriched Body

9999

Lotion contains the statement “98% Naturally-Derived Ingredients* & Purified Water”” in large,
highly visible text in the middle of the label. The “98%” is among the largest text on the label,
larger even than the “Nivea” or “Naturally Good” brand names. The front label also contains

images of plants as its background. The other “Nourish by Nature” Products contain essentially
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identical claims and analogous plant imagery. The label distinguishes synthetic from “Naturally-
Derived” ingredients by also listing “2% Skin Safe Synthetic Ingredients.”
41. A representative image of the back label of the “Nourish by Nature” Calming

Lavender Enriched Body Lotion is shown below:

-

Good for your skin!
48HR Moisture,
Feel and see smooth skin

—

Morrlty Oerived Ingrodient” | Seurce

LI

03054

72140

|

|

0

42.  The “Nourish by Nature” back label above displays a table, the left column of
which is designated “Naturally-Derived Ingredient®*”. This asterisk leads to the same statement
as the front label: “naturally-derived ingredients have undergone processing while retaining a
majority of the molecular structure.” The back label also claims that “Nourish by Nature cares
and moisturizes your skin with natural ingredients derived from nature” (emphasis added); this

implies that the “naturally-derived” ingredients are “natural.”
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43.  The table on the “Nourish by Nature” back label for the Avocado Enriched Body
Lotion identifies the following ingredients as “Naturally-Derived”: water, glycerin, denatured
alcohol, cetearyl alcohol, coco-caprylate/caprate, cocoglycerides, glyceryl stearate SE,
dicaprylyl ether, avocado oil, hydroxypropyl starch phosphate, glyceryl stearate, sodium cetearyl
sterate, xanthum gum, and citric acid. (For the other “Nourish by Nature” products, the avocado
oil is replaced by lavender or aloe vera, respectively.).

44.  The back label also distinguishes the “2% skin safe synthetic ingredients” from

2

“naturally-derived ingredients,” stating these are “included to maintain the integrity of the
product.” The back label further identifies the “skin safe synthetic ingredients” as caprylyl
glycol, hydroxyacetophenone, benzyl alcohol, ethylhexylglycerin, and “fragrance.”

45.  Beiersdorf also sells “Naturally Good” brand of products, which make similar
claims, but phrased as “X% of Natural Origin” or “X% Ingredients of Natural Origin.” Like the
“Nourish by Nature” Products, the “Naturally Good” products use prominent images of plants
on their front labels to buttress the perception they are plant-based. And like the Real Botanicals
products, the Certified PurePlants Products are also comprised primarily of synthetic chemicals.

46.  Beiersdorf’s web site includes a page for the “Nourish by Nature” Products that
reinforces the messaging on the “Nourish by Nature” bottles by emphasizing that the lotions are
“inspired by nature” and “uses ingredients derived from nature*” to “care and nourish your skin.”
The asterisk leads to the same statement as the Product label (i.e., “*naturally-derived ingredients

have undergone processing while retaining a majority of the molecular structure”).

Beiersdorf’s ¢ “Naturally-Derived” and Natural Origin” Claims Are False and Misleading

47.  The ingredient lists establish that natural ingredients such as avocado oil,
lavender oil, and aloe vera are minor components of each Product.

48. Of the listed “naturally-derived” ingredients for the “Nourish by Nature”
Avocado Enriched Lotion, only water, alcohol, avocado oil, and possibly xanthum gum are
actually obtained from nature. All the remaining products are actually synthetic chemicals, made

using standard industrial chemical processes. Although a few of the ingredients are compounds
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that can occur in nature (e.g., glycerin, citric acid), they are not obtained directly from natural
sources when used on the scale necessary for commercial products.

49. The exact ingredients vary from one Beiersdorf “Nourish by Nature” and
“Naturally Good” product to the next, but they all establish that the Products are predominantly
composed of ingredients produced using industrial chemical processes. For the lotions, such
ingredients include glycerin, cetearyl alcohol, coco-caprylate/caprate, cocoglycerides, glyceryl
stearate SE, dicaprylyl ether, hydroxypropyl starch phosphate, glyceryl stearate, sodium cetearyl
sterate, and citric acid. The ingredient lists identify some compounds, such as citric acid, that
occur in nature but are manufactured using industrial processes to meet the demands of mass-
produced goods like the Products..

50.  For example, of the 20 ingredients listed for the “Nourish by Nature” Avocado
Enriched Lotion, 12 are industrially-produced chemicals that most consumers would not identify
as “natural” or “naturally derived.” Further, since the labels explicitly state that the five admitted
“synthetic” ingredients are only 2% of the Product, it necessarily follows that the 98% Naturally-
Derived Ingredients” claim includes the 15 synthetic ingredients that are falsely characterized as
“naturally-derived.” Accordingly, if one were assessing the “% naturally derived ingredients”
using an ordinary consumer’s understanding of “naturally-derived” (i.e., the standard dictionary
definitions of that term, one would measure the real % naturally-derived as less than 98%.

51.  In short, the Products are predominantly composed of ingredients that are
produced using industrial chemical processes. These ingredients are not “naturally derived” or
of “natural origin.”

52. On information and belief, even if one interpreted the claim to refer to the
proportion by weight of the product that is naturally derived (i.e., derived naturally, as opposed
to through synthetic chemistry) or natural origin ingredients (i.e., naturally occurring
compounds obtained from natural sources), the claim is not true.

53.  Defendant falsely and misleadingly refers to synthetic, industrially-manufactured
chemicals as “naturally derived” by assigning them a “% naturally derived” value based on

percentage of the synthetic molecule, by mass, that was present in a naturally derived starting
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material. In other words, Defendant mischaracterizes industrial chemicals as “natural origin” or
“naturally-derived” in order to “greenwash” the Products and make them seem safer and more
environmentally friendly.

54.  Defendant’s “naturally derived”/*natural origin” characterizations are based on
the British Standards Institute’s ISO! 16128: “Guidelines on technical definitions and criteria for
natural and organic cosmetic ingredients and products.” This standard sets forth an algorithm for
calculating the % of a product that is of “natural origin.” It begins by defining “derived natural
ingredients” as “cosmetic ingredients of greater than 50 % natural origin, by molecular weight,
by renewable carbon content, or by any other relevant methods, obtained through defined
chemical and/or biological processes with the intention of chemical modification.” ISO 16128
goes on to define the “natural origin index” as ““a value indicating the extent to which a cosmetic
ingredient meets the definitions of either natural ingredients in ISO 16128-1:2016, Clause 2,
derived natural ingredients from ISO 16128-1:2016, Clause 3, or derived mineral ingredients
from ISO 16128-1:2016, Clause 4.” Broadly speaking, the “value indicating the extent to which
a cosmetic ingredient meets” the standards corresponds to the percentage by weight of the end
product that was in a natural starting material. On information and belief, Defendant uses this
same basic algorithm as used for “natural origin index” and reports the result as “% natural
origin” or “% naturally derived.”

55.  ISO 16128 is unavailable to the public as a practical matter, as it is based on a 46-
page proprietary standard (ISO 16128, parts 1:2016 (“Definitions for Ingredients”) and 2:2017
(“Criteria for ingredients and products’)) copyrighted by the British Standards Institute (BSI), a
private, for-profit institution. The BSI forbids public distribution of the standard without its
permission. Instead, the BSI sells the standard for roughly $400. As such, the BSI fails to

disseminate the “standard” freely to the public at large.

L' “ISO” is an acronym for ‘International Organization for Standardization,” which the BSI

identifies as “a worldwide federation of national standards bodies.”
- 14 -
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56.  To obtain the standard in its entirety, a consumer would need to purchase two BSI
publications costing a total of nearly $400. This is both unlikely and unreasonable for an ordinary
consumer.

57.  The end result is that, for all intents and purposes, the public is entirely ignorant
of how Beiersdorf calculates the percentage of ingredients that is naturally derived/natural origin
and what Beiersdorfis communicating when it makes the naturally derived/natural origin claims.

58.  Even if the public did have access to ISO 16128, it is not designed for use in
labeling and product communications—a fact which BSI states in the very first section of each
volume of the standard. For instance, volume 2 states:

Neither ISO 16128-1 nor this document [i.e., ISO 16128-2] addresses product

communication (e.g. claims and labelling), human safety, environmental safety,

socio-economic considerations (e.g. fair trade), characteristics of packaging
materials or regulatory requirements applicable for cosmetics.
(Emphasis added.). It is inherently problematic for Defendant to use a standard that explicitly
states it is not addressing consumer-facing product claims and labelling for those purposes.

59. IS0 16128’s definition of “natural origin index” is very complicated and entirely
beyond the ability of an ordinary consumer to understand. Chemical reactions which may be
used to create “derived natural” compounds under ISO 16128 include amidation, olefin
metathesis, Aldol reactions, Knoevenagel condensation, Claisen condensation, sulphation,
hydrolysis, hydrogenation, the Guerbet reaction, and any form of oxidation or reduction. The
natural origin index for the product as a whole is then calculated using a weight-adjusted
summation of the % natural origin for each of the constituent ingredients.

60.  ISO 16128 is also inappropriate for use in labeling because it does not require
uniform calculations. Instead, it allows the party calculating the “natural origin index” (i.e., the
% natural origin or naturally derived) to include or exclude added water, depending on the party’s
preference. Accordingly, the same product could have two different “% natural origin” indices
(i.e., % naturally derived), depending on who calculated it. The standard is also ambiguous in

that it defines “derived natural” ingredients as those of 50% or more “natural origin,” measured
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99 ¢

by any of three criteria: “molecular weight,” “renewable carbon content”, or “any other relevant
methods.” But the standard does not define “renewable carbon content,” nor what the “any other
relevant methods” may be. Laypeople are not versed in assessing molecular weights either.

61.  The stated purpose of ISO 16128 is “to encourage a wider choice of natural and
organic ingredients in the formulation of a diverse variety of cosmetic products to encourage
innovation.” In other words, ISO 16128’s purpose is to provide an expansive definition “natural
origin” to encourage manufacturers to use ‘“natural” materials as ingredients for manufacturing.

62.  ISO 16128 is not a government standard, nor even a publicly agreed to standard.
The BSI created ISO 16128 without any public comment. Based on information on the ISO web
site, it appears that ISO 16128 was designed solely by cosmetic industry scientists, without
involvement of any consumer advocates or persons familiar with consumer advertising.

63.  For comparison of ISO 16128’s use of “naturally derived” to an ordinary
consumer’s understanding of that term, consider aspartame. It is an artificial sweetener, in the
sense that it is entirely man-made and does not occur in nature. But it is potentially 100%
“natural origin” under ISO 16128, because all the starting materials used to make it (two amino
acids and methanol) are naturally-occurring compounds. But most ordinary consumers would
not view aspartame as natural or “100% naturally derived.” This underscores how misleading
ISO 16128 is when used in advertising, as Defendant’s Product labels do.

64. Similarly, hydrogenated vegetable oils, synthetic materials created using an
industrial process which cannot be advertised as “natural” in foods, would be advertised as ~99%
“natural origin” in cosmetics using the ISO 16128 standard, because only the added hydrogens
would be deemed “non-natural”; the overwhelming majority of the mass of the hydrogenated
vegetable oils would be the carbon, hydrogen, and oxygen atoms in the original vegetable oils.
While the standards applicable to foods do not legally control cosmetic advertising, the fact that
such claims would not be allowed in the food context demonstrates that most ordinary consumers
would view ISO 16128’s characterization of hydrogenated oils as >90% naturally derived as

false and misleading.
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65.  Even dioxins, toxic materials produced as byproducts when burning wood, could
be categorized as “90% “natural origin,” since the bulk of the mass of the dioxins are from wood,
which is a natural material. Again, this demonstrates how ISO16128 falsely and misleadingly
characterizes synthetic compounds as primarily “naturally derived.”

66.  ISO 16128 is particularly inappropriate for use in marketing beauty products
because the chemicals used in many beauty products have particularly high molecular weights,
such that even extensive chemicals modification is unlikely to change 50% or more of the
starting ingredient’s molecular weight. That is particularly true for the fatty acids and esters used
in shampoos, conditioners, and moisturizers.

67.  Ultimately, the only major group of chemicals deemed not “natural origin” or
“naturally derived” under ISO 16128 is petroleum-based chemicals and new chemical materials
whose mass is 50% or more derived from petrochemicals. This demonstrates that the ISO 16128
is arbitrary, in that a material whose mass is 49% from petroleum will be categorized 51%
naturally derived, but one whose mass is 50% from petroleum will be categorized 0% naturally
derived.

68.  Defendant’s labels are also misleading because, in combination with the labels’
prominent and repeated references to natural ingredients such as “avocado oil,” “aloe vera,” and
“lavender oil,” Beiersdorf falsely suggests that plant-based compounds comprise a majority of
the products’ ingredients and/or weight. Beiersdorf further reinforces this false and misleading
claim by contrasting it with the “2%” claims for certain chemicals, which suggests that the
“naturally derived”/“natural origin” ingredients are not industrially-manufactured chemicals,
even though they actually are.

69.  As the examples above show, the “% Natural Origin”/“% Naturally Derived”
claims made by Beiersdorf are even more confusing than “100% natural-origin” claims, because
representing that, e.g., “80%” of ingredients are “natural-origin” requires the consumer to
interpret how the 80% value was calculated. As a practical matter, “100% natural” always means
the same thing, irrespective of how it is calculated. In contrast, a statement that a product is “80%

natural-origin” ingredients is open to varying interpretations regarding whether that refers to a
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percentage of ingredients, mass, volume, or other measurement, each of which could mean very
different things with respect to how much of the product is “natural” of “naturally derived.”

70.  Concerned observers have noted the trend of advertising products as being made
from “naturally derived” ingredients is misleading.

71.  For example, Chagrin Valley Soap and Salve, a company dedicated to marketing

products made from natural ingredients, notes:

Derived From . .. Naturally Derived From . .. Made From . .. Quite Confusing

You will often see these words listed before or after an ingredient in a
skincare product. So what do they mean? As usual, there is no standard for
these terms so the consumer is left scratching their heads and asking the
question, "Is this product natural."

Coconut is still considered natural whether it is whole, dried, or shredded.
We can even obtain natural coconut oil, coconut milk, and coconut with
minimal changes to the original coconut. However, once the oil is
biochemically altered, it then becomes naturally derived or even synthetic.

A product label will list a chemical ingredient followed by the phrase
“derived from ...some natural substance." For example, cocamide
diethanolamine (cocamide DEA) can be derived from the fatty acids of
natural coconut oil.

Although this ingredient may start out as natural coconut oil, by the time it
is separated out using petrochemicals and chemical solvents, and further
processed to create a foam boosting agent--it is far from coconut oil and far
from natural!

A product label will list a chemical ingredient followed by the phrase
“naturally derived from ...some natural substance.” The words “naturally
derived” live in a gray area because it is difficult to know if the ingredient
is closer to natural or synthetic.

Just how far down the road from its natural source has this ingredient
traveled? Some of these ingredients may be minimally processed and
therefore are closer to their natural source. But others have been processed
many times and depending on the “process” they may not resemble the
original botanical ingredient at all. What determines the “naturalness” of a
derived ingredient totally depends on the type of process used to
manufacture that ingredient. Unfortunately, the consumer is not provided
with this information.

A product label will list a chemical ingredient followed by the phrase “made
from ...some natural substance." Your guess is as good as mine.
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This type of labeling is misleading for consumers.

https://www.chagrinvalleysoapandsalve.com/blog/posts/but-the-label-says-natural/ (last

accessed December 6, 2022).
72.  Members of the Ninth Circuit have commented that Beiersdorf’s “greenwashing”

is a disturbing and increasingly common practice:

. . . Beiersdorf’s labeling nonetheless resembles a concerning practice
known as “greenwashing.” Greenwashing refers to “a set of deceptive
marketing practices in which an entity publicly misrepresents or
exaggerates the positive environmental impact or attributes of a product[.]”
Amanda Shanor & Sarah E. Light, Greenwashing and the First Amendment,
122 Colum. L. Rev. 2033, 2037 (2022); see also id. at 2056—57. The practice
of greenwashing has resulted from the increasing number of American
consumers who want to buy environmentally friendly, or “green,” products.
See 16 C.F.R. § 260.1 (“the Green Guides™).

Greenwashing is not limited to environmental effects and is also used to
describe the misleading or false labeling of a wide range of consumer
products. For example, the practice of greenwashing also affects “the way
consumers buy cosmetic and personal products.” Alexa Riccolo, The Lack
of Regulation in Preventing Greenwashing of Cosmetics in the U.S., 47 J.
Legis. 120, 122 (2021). In the context of cosmetics and personal care
products (e.g., shampoos and conditioners), the term is used to describe
products that have “natural” labeling “but actually contain chemicals[.]” /d.

McGinnity v. The Procter & Gamble Company, No. 22-15080 (9th Cir. 2022) (J. Gould,
concurring). Although McGinnity affirmed dismissal of a false advertising claim against
Beiersdorf arising from the phrase ‘“Nature Fusion”, that case is distinguishable because
Beiersdorf argued that it had given notice to consumers that its ingredients were not “natural” by
disclosing chemicals on the back label. Here, Beiersdorf has advertised that those chemicals are
naturally sourced; the ingredient list cannot act as notice that the chemicals are not natural if
Beiersdorf is telling consumers that those same chemicals are “naturally derived” or of “natural
origin.”

73.  An ordinary consumer would not have the knowledge required to determine
which of the ingredients is natural or naturally derived versus being the product of an industrial
chemical process. There mere fact that an ingredient has a “chemical sounding” name is no
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definitive indication whether it is natural or naturally derived versus synthetic. For example,
citric acid is a naturally-occurring compound, but is produced industrially using either chemical
synthesis or genetically-modified yeast. Cocamidopropyl betaine sounds like it might be natural,
given the reference to coconuts in its name (i.e., “coc-*), but it is made in a two-step industrial
process, beginning with the reaction of dimethylaminopropylamine with fatty acids from coconut
or palm kernel oil, followed by use of chloroacetic acid to form the final product. Thus, despite
sometimes using coconut oil as a starting material, there is nothing natural about it. As a result,
these and other “naturally derived” claims made by Beiersdorf are false and misleading to
consumers.

74. In contrast, Beiersdorf knows or should know that its claims are false and/or
misleading, because the BSI explicitly stated in the ISO 16128 publication that “Neither ISO
16128-1 nor this document [i.e., ISO 16128-2] addresses product communication (e.g. claims
and labelling), . . . characteristics of packaging materials or regulatory requirements applicable
for cosmetics.” In other words, the BSI told Beiersdorf and other third parties that the standard
was not suitable for consumer communications (i.e., advertisements, labels, and marketing).
Beiersdorf thus had actual or constructive knowledge that ISO 16128 was likely to deceive
and/or confuse consumers.

75.  Beiersdorf’s label claims conflict with official guidance from the Federal Trade
Commission. The “Green Guides,” mentioned in McGinnity, instruct businesses to avoid
“overstatement of environmental attributes,” such as by characterizing an increase in recycled
content from 2% to 3% as a “50% increase in recycled content,” or advertising a trach bag as
recyclable when trash bags are routinely not recycled. See 16 C.F.R. 230(c). Similarly, the Green
Guides state that, even if a marketer explains and can substantiate a product’s environmental
benefits, advertisements of environmental benefits may be misleading if the advertisement

EY9

otherwise implies deceptive claims. See id., § 260.4. The Products’ “natural origin™/ “naturally
derived” ingredients claims are misleading in this respect, because they suggest that, because a
majority of the molecular mass of the ingredients were sourced from non-petroleum sources,

they are environmentally friendly and more “natural.” This is misleading because a synthetic
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chemical is not “natural” in any meaningful respect regardless of where its primary starting
material was sourced, and there are many environmental effects that have no relation to the
molecular mass of the starting material relative to the end product (e.g., the use of toxic chemicals
in manufacturing, the identity of byproducts, the amount of energy used to manufacture the
chemicals, etc.).

76.  The Green Guides also state it is deceptive to misrepresent, directly or indirectly,
that a “product or package” is “made with renewable materials.” 16 C.F.R. 260.16(a). As noted
above, ISO 16128 identifies “renewable carbon content” as a basis for claiming a product is
“naturally derived” or “natural origin.” Accordingly, Beiersdorf’s references to “natural origin”
and “naturally derived” ingredients are also misleading because they fail to identify with
sufficient specificity the basis for the natural content claims.

77.  In many cases, Beiersdorf’s claims are based on the specious assumption that
merely using a plant as the initial source of carbon content makes the resulting synthetic chemical
environmentally friendly. This assumption is false because many of the ingredients (e.g., palm
oil) begin as plants grown in environmentally damaging ways. While these ingredients come
from plants, the monoculture plantations where such plants are grown are often made by clear-
cutting rain forests and other natural habitats, resulting in substantial environmental degradation.
Further, there is no guarantee those plants are grown using organic farming methods, as opposed
to using pesticides and other environmentally-damaging chemicals. Accordingly, marketing
these ingredients as environmentally-friendly by labeling them “Natural Origin” or “Naturally-
Derived” is false or misleading. See Amberg, Resources at 3 (noting green cosmetics were aimed
at “environmental conservation, minimization of polluting, responsible usage of non-renewable
resources, and preservation of fauna and species) (emphasis added).

PLAINTIFFS’ ALLEGATIONS

Aisley Davis
78.  Plaintiff Aisley Davis purchased Beiersdorf “Naturally Good” Night Cream with
98% Natural Origin Ingredients” and “Naturally Good” Biodegradable Wipes with “97% Natural

Origin Ingredients” from a Walmart in Redding in Shasta County, California in June of 2024.
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79.  Plaintiff Davis made each of her purchases of the Beiersdorf “Naturally Good”
products after reading and relying on the product labels that promised that the care products were
made of “99% Natural Origin* Ingredients” and “97% Natural Origin* Ingredients,”
respectively. She relied on the “X% Natural Origin* Ingredients” representation for each
purchase and purchased each product because of the “X% Natural Origin* Ingredients”
representations. She also believed in the truth of each representation, i.e., that the product was
comprised of ingredients of which 99% and 97% were natural origin, respectively, using the
ordinary definition of the phrase “natural origin.” Had Defendant not made the “X% Natural
Origin* Ingredients” claims on its packages in these circumstances, she would not have been
drawn to the Products and would not have purchased them. At a minimum she would have paid
less for each Product.

80.  Moreover, had Defendant adequately disclosed the proportion of ingredients that
were naturally derived, Plaintiff Davis would not have purchased the Products or would have, at
minimum, paid less for them. Plaintiff Davis regularly looks for natural, natural origin, and
naturally-derived ingredients before purchasing products and uses that as a basis for buying
and/or comparing similar products. The presence and amount of natural origin and naturally
derived ingredients in a product is a material factor in purchasing decisions by Plaintiff Davis.

81.  Plaintiff Davis paid for each Product under the mistaken belief that the it was
made of “99% [or 97%] Natural Origin Ingredients.” The only information plaintiff had about
the composition of the Product was the “X% Natural Origin* Ingredients” claim on the Product’s
label. She did not have any reason to believe that the Products were comprised of fewer than
99% (night cream) and 97% (wipes) natural origin ingredients, respectively, as claimed on the
labels. Nor did she have any reason to know the Products consisted of anything less than 98%
naturally-derived ingredients.

82. Plaintiff Davis did not note the asterisk in the phrase “X% Natural Origin*” prior
to making her purchase, nor did she see any asterisk-linked explanation on the front of the
product label. Even if Plaintiff Davis had, the asterisk statement on the back label would not

have clarified the truth of the product’s composition, because the statement “*Ingredients
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sourced from nature retaining greater than 50% of their molecular structure (natural state) after
being processed, including water” is still misleading, as it fails to explicitly indicate to her as a
layperson that the ingredients are synthetic, not “natural origin.” Even having been informed of
the meaning of the asterisk statement, Plaintiff views Defendant’s conduct as a bait-and-switch
tactic.

83.  Ms. Davis continues to be interested in skin and cosmetic products comprised of
natural and naturally derived ingredients, and in particular the Beiersdorf Products, and similar
care products marketed as comprised of natural and naturally derived ingredients. However, she
does not know whether any Beiersdorf Products she may purchase in the future will be subject
to the same false advertising, and thus is subject to uncertainty whether her future purchases may
subject her to similar economic harm.

Julius Yarbough

84.  Plaintiff Julius Yarbough purchased Beiersdorf “Naturally Good” Deodorant
from a Walmart in Solano County, California on multiple occasions beginning in or around
December of 2023.

85.  Plaintiff Yarbough made his purchase of the Beiersdorf “Naturally Good”
product after reading and relying on the product labels that promised that the care products were
made of “98% Naturally-Derived* Ingredients.” He relied on the “98% Naturally-Derived*
Ingredients” representation for each purchase and purchased each product because of the “98%
Naturally-Derived* Ingredients” representations. He also believed in the truth of each
representation, i.e., that the product was comprised of ingredients of which 98% were naturally-
derived, using the ordinary definition of the phrase “naturally-derived.” Had Defendant not made
the “98% Naturally-Derived* Ingredients” claims on its packages in these circumstances, he
would not have been drawn to the Products and would not have purchased them. At a minimum
he would have paid less for each Product.

86.  Moreover, had Defendant adequately disclosed the proportion of ingredients that
were naturally derived, Plaintiff Yarbough would not have purchased the Products or would

have, at minimum, paid less for them. Plaintiff Yarbough regularly looks for natural, natural
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origin, and naturally-derived ingredients before purchasing products and uses that as a basis for
buying and/or comparing similar products. The presence and amount of natural origin and
naturally derived ingredients in a product is a material factor in purchasing decisions by Plaintiff
Yarbough.

87. Plaintiff Yarbough paid for the Product under the mistaken belief that the it was
made of “98% naturally-derived ingredients.” The only information plaintiff had about the
composition of the Product was the “98% naturally-derived* ingredients” claim on the Product’s
label. He did not have any reason to believe that the Products were comprised of fewer than 98%
naturally-derived ingredients as claimed on the labels. Nor did he have any reason to know the
Products consisted of anything less than 98% naturally-derived ingredients.

88.  Plaintiff Yarbough did not note the asterisk in the phrase “98% naturally-derived*
ingredients” prior to making his purchase, nor did he see any asterisk-linked explanation on the
front of the product label. Even if Plaintiff Yarbough had, the asterisk statement on the back label
would not have clarified the truth of the product’s composition, because the statement
“*naturally-derived ingredients have undergone processing while retaining a majority of the
molecular structure” is still misleading, as it fails to explicitly indicate to him as a layperson that
the ingredients are synthetic, not “naturally-derived.” Even having been informed of the
meaning of the asterisk statement, Plaintiff views Defendant’s conduct as a bait-and-switch
tactic.

89.  Mr. Yarbough continues to be interested in skin and cosmetic products comprised
of natural and naturally derived ingredients, and in particular the Beiersdorf Products, and similar
care products marketed as comprised of natural and naturally derived ingredients. However, he
does not know whether any Beiersdorf Products he may purchase in the future will be subject to
the same false advertising, and thus is subject to uncertainty whether his future purchases may

subject him to similar economic harm.
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Valerie Robins

90.  Plaintiff Valerie Robins purchased Beiersdorf “Naturally Good” Argan Oil
Regenerating Night Cream with 99% Natural Origin ingredients from a Walmart in Solano
County, California in or around October 2024.

91.  Plaintiff Valerie Robins each of her purchases of the Beiersdorf “Nourish by
Nature” product after reading and relying on the product labels that promised that the care
products were made of “98% Naturally-Derived* Ingredients.” She relied on the “98%
Naturally-Derived* Ingredients” representation for each purchase and purchased each product
because of the “98% Naturally-Derived* Ingredients” representations. She also believed in the
truth of each representation, i.e., that the product was comprised of ingredients of which 98%
were naturally-derived, using the ordinary definition of the phrase “naturally-derived.” Had
Defendant not made the “98% Naturally-Derived* Ingredients” claims on its packages in these
circumstances, she would not have been drawn to the Products and would not have purchased
them. At a minimum she would have paid less for each Product.

92.  Moreover, had Defendant adequately disclosed the proportion of ingredients that
were naturally derived, Plaintiff Robins would not have purchased the Products or would have,
at minimum, paid less for them. Plaintiff Robins regularly looks for natural, natural origin, and
naturally-derived ingredients before purchasing products and uses that as a basis for buying
and/or comparing similar products. The presence and amount of natural origin and naturally
derived ingredients in a product is a material factor in purchasing decisions by Plaintiff Robins.

93. Plaintiff Robins paid for the Product under the mistaken belief that the it was
made of “98% naturally-derived ingredients.” The only information plaintiff had about the
composition of the Product was the “98% naturally-derived* ingredients” claim on the Product’s
label. She did not have any reason to believe that the Products were comprised of fewer than
98% naturally-derived ingredients as claimed on the labels. Nor did she have any reason to know
the Products consisted of anything less than 98% naturally-derived ingredients.

94.  Plaintiff Robins did not note the asterisk in the phrase “98% naturally-derived*

ingredients” prior to making her purchase, nor did she see any asterisk-linked explanation on the
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front of the product label. Even if Plaintiff Robins had, the asterisk statement on the back label
would not have clarified the truth of the product’s composition, because the statement
“*naturally-derived ingredients have undergone processing while retaining a majority of the
molecular structure” is still misleading, as it fails to explicitly indicate to her as a layperson that
the ingredients are synthetic, not “naturally-derived.” Even having been informed of the
meaning of the asterisk statement, Plaintiff views Defendant’s conduct as a bait-and-switch
tactic.

95.  Ms. Robins continues to be interested in skin and cosmetic products comprised
of natural and naturally derived ingredients, and in particular the Beiersdorf Products, and similar
care products marketed as comprised of natural and naturally derived ingredients. However, she
does not know whether any Beiersdorf Products she may purchase in the future will be subject
to the same false advertising, and thus is subject to uncertainty whether her future purchases may
subject her to similar economic harm.

Marisol Scharon

96.  Plaintiff Marisol Scharon purchased Beiersdorf “Nourish by Nature” Aloe Vera
98% Naturally-Derived Body Lotion from a CVS in San Pedro in Los Angeles County,
California in or around November 2024.

97.  Plaintiff Scharon made each of her purchases of the Beiersdorf “Nourish by
Nature” product after reading and relying on the product labels that promised that the care
products were made of “98% Naturally-Derived* Ingredients.” She relied on the “98%
Naturally-Derived* Ingredients” representation for each purchase and purchased each product
because of the “98% Naturally-Derived* Ingredients” representations. She also believed in the
truth of each representation, i.e., that the product was comprised of ingredients of which 98%
were naturally- derived, using the ordinary definition of the phrase “naturally-derived.” Had
Defendant not made the “98% Naturally-Derived* Ingredients” claims on its packages in these
circumstances, she would not have been drawn to the Products and would not have purchased

them. At a minimum she would have paid less for each Product.
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98.  Moreover, had Defendant adequately disclosed the proportion of ingredients that
were naturally derived, Plaintiff Scharon would not have purchased the Products or would have,
at minimum, paid less for them. Plaintiff Scharon regularly looks for natural, natural origin, and
naturally-derived ingredients before purchasing products and uses that as a basis for buying
and/or comparing similar products. The presence and amount of natural origin and naturally
derived ingredients in a product is a material factor in purchasing decisions by Plaintiff Scharon.

99.  Plaintiff Scharon paid for the Product under the mistaken belief that the it was
made of “98% naturally-derived ingredients.” The only information plaintiff had about the
composition of the Product was the “98% naturally-derived* ingredients” claim on the Product’s
label. She did not have any reason to believe that the Products were comprised of fewer than
98% naturally-derived ingredients as claimed on the labels. Nor did she have any reason to know
the Products consisted of anything less than 98% naturally-derived ingredients.

100.  Plaintiff Scharon did not note the asterisk in the phrase “98% naturally-derived*
ingredients” prior to making her purchase, nor did she see any asterisk-linked explanation on the
front of the product label. Even if Plaintiff Scharon had, the asterisk statement on the back label
would not have clarified the truth of the product’s composition, because the statement
“*naturally-derived ingredients have undergone processing while retaining a majority of the
molecular structure” is still misleading, as it fails to explicitly indicate to her as a layperson that
the ingredients are synthetic, not “naturally-derived.” Even having been informed of the
meaning of the asterisk statement, Plaintiff views Defendant’s conduct as a bait-and-switch
tactic.

101.  Ms. Scharon continues to be interested in skin and cosmetic products comprised
of natural and naturally derived ingredients, and in particular the Beiersdorf Products, and similar
care products marketed as comprised of natural and naturally derived ingredients. However, she
does not know whether any Beiersdorf Products she may purchase in the future will be subject
to the same false advertising, and thus is subject to uncertainty whether her future purchases may

subject her to similar economic harm.
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Kathryn Bowman

102.  Plaintiff Kathryn Bowman purchased “Naturally Good” Face Cleanser with “98%
Ingredients of Natural Origin*” from a Walmart store in Carmichael, California in 2024. Plaintiff
Bowman viewed and relied upon the product label, including the statement that it was “98%
Ingredients of Natural Origin*,” when purchasing the “Naturally Good” Essential Botanicals
products.

103. Plaintiff Bowman made each of his purchases of the Beiersdorf products after
reading and relying on the product labels that promised that the care products were made of
“98% Ingredients of Natural Origin*.” She relied on the “98% Ingredients of Natural Origin*”
representation for each purchase and purchased each product because of the “98% Ingredients
of Natural Origin*” representations. She also read and relied upon the ancillary label
representations indicating the products were “botanical” in nature, and comprised of apricots and
aloe vera, including imagery of apricots and aloe vera. She also believed in the truth of each
representation, i.e., that the product was comprised of ingredients of which 98% were natural
origin, using the ordinary definition of the phrase “natural origin.” Had Defendant not made the
“98% Ingredients of Natural Origin*” claims on its packages in these circumstances, she would
not have been drawn to the Products and would not have purchased them. At a minimum She
would have paid less for each Product.

104. Moreover, had Defendant adequately disclosed the number of ingredients that
were naturally derived, Plaintiff Bowman would not have purchased the Products or would have,
at minimum, paid less for them. Plaintiff Bowman regularly looks for natural, natural origin, and
naturally-derived ingredients before purchasing products and uses that as a basis for buying
and/or comparing similar products. The presence and amount of natural origin and naturally
derived ingredients in a product is a material factor in purchasing decisions by Plaintiff Bowman.

105. Plaintiff Bowman paid for the Product under the mistaken belief that the it was
made of 98% Ingredients of Natural Origin. The only information plaintiff had about the
composition of the Product was the “98% Ingredients of Natural Origin*” claim on the Product’s

label. Although She saw the “98% Ingredients of Natural Origin*” claim, she overlooked the
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asterisks and associated statement due to their small size. She did not have any reason to believe
that the Products were comprised of fewer than 98% naturally derived ingredients as claimed on
the labels. Nor did she have any reason to know the Products consisted of anything less than
98% natural origin ingredients.

106. Plaintiff Bowman did not note the asterisk in the phrase “X% Natural Origin*”
prior to making her purchase, nor did she sha any asterisk-linked explanation on the front of the
product label. Even if Plaintiff Bowman had, the asterisk statement on the back label would not
have clarified the truth of the product’s composition, because the statement “*Ingredients
sourced from nature retaining greater than 50% of their molecular structure (natural state) after
being processed, including water” is still misleading, as it fails to explicitly indicate to her as a
layperson that the ingredients are synthetic, not “natural origin.” Even having been informed of
the meaning of the asterisk statement, Plaintiff views Defendant’s conduct as a bait-and-switch
tactic.

107. Ms. Bowman continues to be interested in skin and cosmetic products comprised
of natural and naturally derived ingredients, and in particular the Beiersdorf products, and similar
care products marketed as comprised of natural and naturally derived ingredients. However, she
does not know whether any Beiersdorf skin care products he may purchase in the future will be
subject to the same false advertising, and thus is subject to uncertainty whether her future
purchases may subject her to similar economic harm.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

108. Plaintiffs bring this class action lawsuit on behalf of themselves and a proposed
class of similarly situated persons, pursuant to Rule 23(b)(2) and (b)(3) of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure. Plaintiffs seek to represent the following group of similarly situated persons,
defined as follows:

Class: All persons in who purchased, in the State of California, the Products from April

25, 2021 to the present.
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109. This action has been brought and may properly be maintained as a class action
against Defendant because there is a well-defined community of interest in the litigation and the
proposed classes are easily ascertainable.

110.  Numerosity: Plaintiffs do not know the exact size the Class, but they estimate that
each is composed of more than 100 persons. The persons in the Class are so numerous that the
joinder of all such persons is impracticable and the disposition of their claims in a class action
rather than in individual actions will benefit the parties and the courts.

111.  Common Questions Predominate: This action involves common questions of law
and fact to the Class because each class member’s claim derives from the deceptive, misleading,
and/or false statements and omissions that led them to believe that the Products were composed
of specific proportions of naturally derived ingredients when they were not. The common
questions of law and fact predominate over individual questions, as proof of a common or single
set of facts will establish the right of each member of the Class to recover. The questions of law
and fact common to the Class are:

a. Whether Defendant deceptively, unlawfully, and/or unfairly misrepresented to

the Class that the Products were comprised of “X% naturally derived”/“X%
Natural Origin,” plant-based ingredients;

b. Whether Defendant’s actions violate California laws invoked herein;

c. Whether Defendant’s advertising and marketing regarding the Products was

likely to deceive reasonable consumers;

d. Whether Defendant’s representations or omissions are material to reasonable

consumers;

e. Whether Defendant engaged in the behavior knowingly, recklessly, or

negligently;

f. The amount of profits and revenues earned by Defendant as a result of the
conduct;

g. Whether Class members are entitled to restitution, injunctive and other equitable

relief and, if so, what is the nature (and amount) of such relief; and
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h. Whether Class members are entitled to payment of actual, incidental,
consequential, exemplary and/or statutory damages plus interest thereon, and if
so, what is the nature of such relief.

112.  Typicality: Each Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the other members
of the Class because, among other things, all such claims arise out of the same wrongful course
of conduct engaged in by Defendant in violation of law as complained of herein. Further, the
damages of each member of the Class were caused directly by Defendant’s wrongful conduct in
violation of the law as alleged herein.

113.  Adequacy of Representation: Each Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the
interests of all Class members because it is in their best interests to prosecute the claims alleged
herein to obtain full compensation due to them for the unfair and illegal conduct of which she
complains. Each Plaintiff also has no interests that are in conflict with, or antagonistic to, the
interests of Class members. Plaintiffs have retained highly competent and experienced class
action attorneys to represent their interests and that of the Class. By prevailing on their claims,
Plaintiffs will establish Defendant’s liability to all Class members. Plaintiffs and their counsel
have the necessary financial resources to adequately and vigorously litigate this class action, and
Plaintiffs and counsel are aware of their fiduciary responsibilities to the Class members and are
determined to diligently discharge those duties by vigorously seeking the maximum possible
recovery for class members.

114.  Superiority: There is no plain, speedy, or adequate remedy other than by
maintenance of this class action. The prosecution of individual remedies by members of the class
will tend to establish inconsistent standards of conduct for Defendant and result in the
impairment of class members’ rights and the disposition of their interests through actions to
which they were not parties. Class action treatment will permit a large number of similarly
situated persons to prosecute their common claims in a single forum simultaneously, efficiently,
and without the unnecessary duplication of effort and expense that numerous individual actions
would engender. Furthermore, as the damages suffered by each individual member of the

Class may be relatively small, the expenses and burden of individual litigation would make it
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difficult or impossible for individual members of the class to redress the wrongs done to them,
while an important public interest will be served by addressing the matter as a class action.

115. Plaintiffs are unaware of any difficulties that are likely to be encountered in the
management of this action that would preclude its maintenance as a class action.

CAUSES OF ACTION

PLAINTIFES’ FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Fraud, Deceit and/or Misrepresentation)
On Behalf of Each Plaintiff and the Class

116. Each Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all preceding paragraphs of
this Class Action Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

117. As set forth above, Defendant falsely and/or deceptively represented to each
Plaintiff and those similarly situated that the Products were comprised of X% naturally
derived/natural origin ingredients and/or primarily of plant-based materials when, in fact, the
Products were not. (Specifically, Defendant advertised the Products as 90% to 97% naturally-
derived/natural origin ingredients, depending on the specific product.) Defendant knew that the
Products were not comprised of “X% naturally derived”/X% natural origin” ingredients or
made primarily from plant-based materials, yet advertised that they were. Defendant made false
and/or deceptive representations and statements (by omission and commission) that led
reasonable consumers to believe that that the Products were comprised of >X% naturally
derived/natural origin ingredients and comprised primarily of plant-based materials.

118. Defendant’s misrepresentations were material at the time they were made. They
concerned material facts that were essential to the purchasing decisions of Plaintiffs and those
similarly situated. Hair and skin care products that are not X% naturally derived ingredients or
made primarily from plant based materials are worth less to consumers than such products that
are.

119.  Each Plaintiff and those similarly situated reasonably relied to their detriment on
Defendant’s representations. Had each Plaintiff and those similarly situated been adequately
informed and not intentionally deceived by Defendant, they would have acted differently by,

without limitation, not purchasing (or paying less for) the Products.

-32-

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Case 3:25-cv-03661-TSH Document1 Filed 04/25/25 Page 33 of 78

120. By and through such fraud, deceit, and/or misrepresentations, Defendant intended
to induce Plaintiffs and those similarly situated to alter their position to their detriment.
Specifically, Defendant fraudulently and deceptively induced each Plaintiff and those similarly
situated to, without limitation, purchase the Products.

121. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s fraud and misrepresentations,
each Plaintiff and those similarly situated have suffered damages. In particular, each Plaintiff
seeks to recover on behalf of himself or herself and those similarly situated the amount of the
price premium they paid (i.e., the difference between the price consumers paid for the Products
and the price they would have paid but for Defendant’s misrepresentations), in an amount to be
proven at trial.

122.  Defendant’s conduct as described herein was willful and malicious and was
designed to maximize Defendant’s profits even though Defendant knew that it would cause loss

and harm to Plaintiffs and those similarly situated.

PLAINTIFES’ SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(Violation of the Consumers Legal Remedies Act,
California Civil Code § 1750, et seq.)

On Behalf of Each Plaintiff and the Class

123.  Each Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference the paragraphs of this Class
Action Complaint as if set forth herein.

124.  This cause of action is brought pursuant to the California Consumers Legal
Remedies Act, California Civil Code § 1750, ef seq. (“CLRA”).

125. Defendant’s actions, representations, omissions, and conduct have violated, and
continue to violate the CLRA, because they extend to transactions that are intended to result, or
which have resulted, in the sale of goods to consumers.

126.  Each Plaintiff and other members of the class are “consumers” as that term is
defined by the CLRA in California Civil Code § 1761(d).

127.  The Products that each Plaintiff and similarly situated members of the class
purchased are “goods” within the meaning of California Civil Code § 1761.

128. By engaging in the actions, representations, and conduct set forth in this Class

Action Complaint, as described above, Defendant has violated, and continues to violate,
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§§ 1770(a)(5), 1770(a)(7), and 1770(a)(9) of the CLRA. In violation of California Civil Code
§1770(a)(2), Defendant represented source, sponsorship, approval, or certification of goods or
services that they do not have. In violation of California Civil Code §1770(a)(3), Defendant
represented affiliation, connection, or association with, or certification by, another that they do
not have. In violation of California Civil Code §1770(a)(5), Defendant represented that goods
have approval, characteristics, uses, benefits, and qualities that they do not have. In violation of
California Civil Code §1770(a)(7), Defendant’s acts and practices constitute improper
representations that the goods and/or services it sells are of a particular standard, quality, or
grade, when they are of another. In violation of California Civil Code §1770(a)(9), Defendant
advertised goods with intent not to sell them as advertised.

129.  Specifically, Defendant’s acts and practices led consumers to believe that X% of
the ingredients in the Products were naturally derived or of natural origin, when they were not.
Defendant additionally made representations and statements (by omission and commission) that
led reasonable consumers to believe that that the Products were primarily plant-based, including
use of avocado oil, lavender oil, aloe vera, and other natural materials as predominant
ingredients.

130.  Further, Defendant omitted material facts that it had a duty to disclose, as alleged
above.

131. Defendant’s concealment of the true characteristics of the Products was material
to Plaintiffs and Class members. Had they known the truth, Plaintiffs and the Class members
would not have purchased the Products, or would have paid significantly less for them.

132.  Defendant, as explained above, had an ongoing duty to Plaintiffs and the Class
members to refrain from unfair and deceptive practices under the CLRA in the course of their
business. Specifically, Defendant owed Plaintiffs and Class members a duty to disclose material
facts concerning the Products because it possessed exclusive knowledge, it intentionally
concealed them from Plaintiffs and Class members, and/or it made partial representations that

were misleading since it concealed the aforementioned facts.
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133.  Plaintiffs and Class members had no way of learning the facts that Defendant had
concealed or failed to disclose because they were not experts in chemistry or chemical
manufacturing, and did not have access to information regarding which materials Defendant
considered “naturally derived” or “natural origin”, nor its basis for that characterization.

134. Plaintiffs and class members suffered ascertainable loss and actual damages as a
direct and proximate result of Defendant’s misrepresentations and/or failure to disclose material
information.

135.  Each Plaintiff requests that this Court enjoin Defendant from continuing to
employ the unlawful methods, acts and practices alleged herein pursuant to California Civil Code
§ 1780(a)(2). If Defendant is not restrained from engaging in these types of practices in the
future, Plaintiffs and other members of the class will continue to suffer harm.

136.  On February 6, 2025, Plaintiff Kent provided Defendant with notice and demand
on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated that Defendant correct, repair, replace or
otherwise rectify the unlawful, unfair, false and/or deceptive practices complained of herein via
U.S. mail. Plaintiff Burrola also provided notice on November 11, 2024. Despite receiving the
aforementioned notice and demand, Defendant failed to do so in that, among other things, it
failed to identify similarly situated customers, notify them of their right to correction, repair,
replacement or other remedy, and/or to provide that remedy. Plaintiff similarly provided notice
via U.S. mail in 2024. Accordingly, Plaintiffs seek, pursuant to California Civil Code §
1780(a)(3), on behalf of themselves and those similarly situated class members, compensatory
damages, punitive damages and restitution of any ill-gotten gains due to Defendant’s acts and
practices.

137.  Plaintiffs also request that this Court award their costs and reasonable attorneys’

fees pursuant to California Civil Code § 1780(d).

PLAINTIFFS’ THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(False Advertising, Business and Professions Code § 17500, et seq. (“FAL”))
On Behalf of Each Plaintiff and the California Class

138.  Each Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference the paragraphs of this

Class Action Complaint as if set forth herein.
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139. Beginning at an exact date unknown to each Plaintiff, but within three (3) years
preceding the filing of the Class Action Complaint, Defendant made untrue, false, deceptive
and/or misleading statements in connection with the advertising and marketing of the Products,
and in particular those advertised as being “X% naturally derived ingredients” and/or “X%
Ingredients of Natural Origin” and plant-based.

140.  As set forth in this Class Action Complaint, Defendant has made representations
and statements (by omission and commission) that led reasonable consumers to believe that
various specific percentages (generally 90-97%) of the ingredients in the Products were naturally
derived and/or of natural origin. Defendant additionally made representations and statements (by
omission and commission) that led reasonable consumers to believe that that the Products were
primarily plant-based.

141.  Each Plaintiff and those similarly situated relied to their detriment on Defendant’s
false, misleading and deceptive advertising and marketing practices. Had Plaintiffs and those
similarly situated been adequately informed and not intentionally deceived by Defendant, they
would have acted differently by, without limitation, paying less for the Products.

142. Defendant’s acts and omissions are likely to deceive the general public.

143. Defendant engaged in these false, misleading and deceptive advertising and
marketing practices to increase its profits. Accordingly, Defendant has engaged in false
advertising, as defined and prohibited by section 17500, ef seq. of the California Business and
Professions Code.

144. The aforementioned practices, which Defendant has used, and continues to use,
to its significant financial gain, also constitute unlawful competition and provide an unlawful
advantage over Defendant’s competitors as well as injury to the general public.

145. Each Plaintiff seeks, on behalf of those similarly situated, full restitution of
monies, as necessary and according to proof, to restore any and all monies acquired by Defendant
from Plaintiffs, the general public, or those similarly situated by means of the false, misleading
and deceptive advertising and marketing practices complained of herein, plus interest thereon.

Though Plaintiffs did not buy the Products directly from Defendant, a certain amount of money
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flowed from Plaintiffs who purchased the Products through retailers to Defendant. Plaintiffs seek
restitution of those amounts. If Plaintiffs’ and class members’ claims at law fail, Plaintiffs, those
similarly situated and/or other consumers will have no adequate remedy at law by which they
can obtain recovery for the economic harm they have suffered. Each Plaintiff seeks, on behalf of
those similarly situated, an injunction to prohibit Defendant from continuing to engage in the
false, misleading and deceptive advertising and marketing practices complained of herein.

146.  Each Plaintiff and those similarly situated are further entitled to and do seek both
a declaration that the above-described practices constitute false, misleading and deceptive
advertising, and injunctive relief restraining Defendant from engaging in any such advertising
and marketing practices in the future. Such misconduct by Defendant, unless and until enjoined
and restrained by order of this Court, will continue to cause injury in fact to the general public
and the loss of money and property in that Defendant will continue to violate the laws of
California, unless specifically ordered to comply with the same. Even where Defendant has
discontinued certain products and/or removed the “X% naturally derived” claim for a given
Product, it has simultaneously introduced new products making the same false and misleading
claims. This expectation of future violations will require current and future customers to
repeatedly and continuously seek legal redress in order to recover monies paid to Defendant to
which Defendant is not entitled. Plaintiffs, those similarly situated and/or other consumers have
no other adequate remedy at law to ensure future compliance with the California Business and
Professions Code alleged to have been violated herein.

147. As a direct and proximate result of such actions, each Plaintiff and the other
members of the Class have suffered, and continue to suffer, injury in fact and have lost money
and/or property as a result of such false, deceptive and misleading advertising in an amount

which will be proven at trial, but which is in excess of the jurisdictional minimum of this Court.

PLAINTIFFS’ FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Negligent Misrepresentation)
On Behalf of Each Plaintiff and the Class

148.  Each Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference the paragraphs of this Class

Action Complaint as if set forth herein.
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149. In selling the Products to consumers, Defendant made false and misleading
statements regarding them, as described more fully above. Defendant deceptively failed to
inform consumers, at the time of their purchase, that less than X% of the ingredients claimed in
the Products were naturally derived or natural origin. Defendant additionally made
representations and statements (by omission and commission) that led reasonable consumers to
believe that that the Products were X% “naturally derived ingredients” and/or X% “Ingredients
of Natural Origin” and plant-based.

150. These representations were material at the time they were made. They concerned
material facts that were essential to the decisions of Plaintiffs and those similarly situated
regarding how much to pay for the Products.

151. Defendant made identical misrepresentations and omissions to members of the
Class regarding the Products.

152. Defendant should have known its representations were false, and that it had no
reasonable grounds for believing them to be true when it made them.

153. By and through such negligent misrepresentations, Defendant intended to induce
each Plaintiff and those similarly situated to alter their position to their detriment. Specifically,
Defendant negligently induced each Plaintiff and those similarly situated, without limitation, to
purchase the Products at the price they paid.

154. Each Plaintiff and those similarly situated reasonably relied on Defendant’s
representations. Specifically, each Plaintiff and those similarly situated paid as much as they did
for the Products.

155. Because Plaintiffs reasonably relied on Defendant’s false representations, each
Plaintiff and those similarly situated were harmed in the amount of the price premium they paid
(i.e., the difference between the price they paid for the Products and the price they would have

paid but for Defendant’s misrepresentations).
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PLAINTIFFS’ FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Unfair, Unlawful and Deceptive Trade Practices,
Business and Professions Code § 17200, et seq.)
On Behalf of Each Plaintiff and the California Class

156. Each Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference the paragraphs of this Class
Action Complaint as if set forth herein.

157.  Within four (4) years preceding the filing of this Class Action Complaint, and at
all times mentioned herein, Defendant has engaged in, and continues to engage in, unfair,
unlawful and deceptive trade practices in California by carrying out the unfair, deceptive and
unlawful business practices outlined in this Class Action Complaint. In particular, Defendant has
engaged in, and continues to engage in, unfair, unlawful and deceptive trade practices by, without

limitation, the following:

a. engaging in misrepresentation and omissions as described herein;

b. violating the California Consumer Legal Remedies Act as described
herein;

c. violating the FAL as described herein.

158.  Each Plaintiff and those similarly situated relied to their detriment on Defendant’s
unfair, deceptive and unlawful business practices. Had each Plaintiff and those similarly situated
been adequately informed and not deceived by Defendant, they would have acted differently by,
without limitation, not paying for, or, at a minimum, paying less for the Products.

159. Defendant’s acts and omissions are likely to deceive the general public.

160. Defendant engaged in these unlawful, deceptive, and unfair practices to increase
its profits. Accordingly, Defendant has engaged in unlawful trade practices, as defined and
prohibited by section 17200, ef seq. of the California Business and Professions Code.

161. In addition to the unlawful and deceptive acts described above, Defendant
engaged in unfair practices by violating the Federal Trade Commission’s guides against bait
advertising. 16 C.F.R. §§ 238.1-4. The policy provides that “No statement or illustration should
be used in any advertisement which creates a false impression of the grade, quality, make, value,
currency of model, size, color, usability, or origin of the product offered, or which may otherwise

misrepresent the product in such a manner that later, on disclosure of the true facts, the purchaser
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may be switched from the advertised product to another.” 16 C.F.R. § 238.2(a). Defendant’s
aforementioned acts violated this policy, including its representations that the Products
comprised “X% naturally derived ingredients” and/or “X% Ingredients of Natural Origin” and
that plant materials such as avocado oil, lavender, and aloe vera were major ingredients.

162. The aforementioned practices, which Defendant has used to its significant
financial gain, also constitute unlawful competition and provides an unlawful advantage over
Defendant’s competitors as well as injury to the general public.

163. As a direct and proximate result of such actions, each Plaintiff and the other
members of the Class have suffered and continue to suffer injury in fact and have lost money
and/or property as a result of such deceptive, unfair and/or unlawful trade practices and unfair
competition in an amount which will be proven at trial, but which is in excess of the jurisdictional
minimum of this Court. Among other things, Plaintiffs and the Class lost the amount of the price
premium they paid (i.e., the difference between the price consumers paid for the Products and
the price they would have paid but for Defendant’s misrepresentations), in an amount to be
proven at trial. If Plaintiffs’ and class members’ claims at law fail, Plaintiffs, those similarly
situated and/or other consumers will have no adequate remedy at law by which they can obtain
recovery for the economic harm they have suffered.

164. Each Plaintiff seeks, on behalf of those similarly situated, a declaration that the
above-described trade practices are fraudulent, unfair, and/or unlawful.

165.  Each Plaintiff seeks, on behalf of those similarly situated, an injunction to prohibit
Defendant from offering the Products within a reasonable time after entry of judgment with the
unlawful claims. Even where Plaintiff has discontinued certain products and/or removed the
“X% naturally derived” claim for a given product, it has simultaneously introduced new products
making the same false and misleading claim. Such misconduct by Defendant, unless and until
enjoined and restrained by order of this Court, will continue to cause injury in fact to the general
public and the loss of money and property in that Defendant will continue to violate the laws of
California unless specifically ordered to comply with the same. This expectation of future

violations will require current and future consumers to repeatedly and continuously seek legal
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redress in order to recover monies paid to Defendant to which Defendant was not entitled.
Plaintiffs, those similarly situated and/or other consumers have no other adequate remedy at law
to ensure future compliance with the California Business and Professions Code alleged to have

been violated herein.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, each Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and those similarly situated,
respectfully requests that the Court enter judgment against Defendant as follows:

A. Certification of the proposed Class, including appointment of Plaintiffs’ counsel
as class counsel;

B. An order temporarily and permanently enjoining Defendant from continuing the
unlawful, deceptive, fraudulent, and unfair business practices alleged in this Complaint;

C. An award of compensatory damages in an amount to be determined at trial, except
for those causes of action where compensatory damages are not legally available;

D. An award of statutory damages in an amount to be determined at trial, except for
those causes of action where statutory damages are not legally available;

E. An award of punitive damages in an amount to be determined at trial, except for
those causes of action where punitive damages are not legally available;

F. An award of treble damages, except for those causes of action where treble
damages are not legally available;

G. An award of restitution in an amount to be determined at trial;

H. An order requiring Defendant to pay both pre- and post-judgment interest on any

amounts awarded;

L. For reasonable attorneys’ fees and the costs of suit incurred; and
J. For such further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiffs hereby demand a trial by jury.
Dated: April 25, 2025
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GUTRIDE SAFIER LLP
/s/Anthony J. Patek

Seth A. Safier (State Bar No. 197427)
seth@gutridesafier.com

Anthony J. Patek (State Bar No. 228964)
anthony(@gutridesafier.com

100 Pine Street, Suite 1250

San Francisco, CA 94111

Telephone: (415) 639-9090

Facsimile: (415) 449-6469

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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CLRA DECLARATION

I, Marisol Scharon, declare:

1. I am a Plaintiff in this action. If called upon to testify, I could and would
competently testify to the matters contained herein based upon my personal knowledge.

2. I submit this Declaration pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure section
2215.5 and California Civil Code section 1780(d).

3. As set forth in my complaint, I purchased the NIVEA “Nourish by Nature” Body
Lotion form a CVS Pharmacy in San Pedro, California within the last year. I purchased the
product in reliance on claims made by NIVEA that the Product is made with “98% naturally
derived ingredients,” believing that this claim meant that the Product was safer and less toxic
than non-natural body lotions, and had less of an impact on the environment.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of California that the foregoing is true
and correct.

Executed this 26 day of March, 2025 in San Pedro, California.

Maresol JScharon

Marisol Scharon

-1-

DECLARATION RE CAL. CIV. CODE SECTION 1780(D) JURISDICTION
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CLRA DECLARATION

I, Aisley Davis, declare:

1. I am a Plaintiff in this action. If called upon to testify, I could and would
competently testify to the matters contained herein based upon my personal knowledge.

2. I submit this Declaration pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure section
2215.5 and California Civil Code section 1780(d).

3. As set forth in my complaint, I purchased the NIVEA “Naturally Good” Night
Cream with “98% Natural Origin Ingredients” and “Naturally Good” Biodegradable Wipes with
a “97% Natural Origin Ingredients” from a Walmart in Redding in Shasta County, California in
June of 2024.

4. I made each of these purchases of the NIVEA “Naturally Good” products after
reading and relying on the product labels that promised that the care products were made of
“99% Natural Origin* Ingredients” and “97% Natural Origin* Ingredients.”

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of California that the foregoing is true
and correct.

Executed this g day of March, 2025 in Douglas City, California.

Rotsgius

Aisley Davis

-1-

DECLARATION RE CAL. CIV. CODE SECTION 1780(D) JURISDICTION

Doc ID: 1808a3b2781f4c7a8b294fe47d67|

5894a14a030e



Case 3:25-cv-03661-TSH Document1 Filed 04/25/25 Page 47 of 78

APPENDIX C



Case 3:25-cv-03661-TSH Document 1

Filed 04/25/25

Page 48 of 78

| Product \ Package Claims

| Product Images

Nivea Nourished by Nature Products

1. | Calming,
Lavender
Enriched

“98% Naturally Derived”

58%

Less plostic

o

v NOURISH
by NATURE™

CALMING

i

I 98% 2°/o ‘ ’h
ool e L

LAVENDER ENRICHED  #
Body Lotion

IS |
-
7169 FL. OZ. 500mL

Ingredients

Watef, Glycerin, Alcohol Denat., Cetearyl Alcohol,

o _...Gﬂéo-caprylotelcapmte. Cocoglycerides, Glyceryl
Stearate St, Dicaprylyl Ether, Lavandula Angustifolia

(Lavenden) Flower Extract, Hydroxypropy! Starch

Phosphate, Cetyl Palmitate, Glyceryl Stearate,

Sodium Ceteary! Sulfate, Xanthan Gum, Citric Acid,
Caprylyl Glyco, acetophencne, Benzyl
; Alco ylnexylglycerin, Fragrance

Good for your skin!

ABHR Moisture.
Fee! and see smooth skin

ety Durrred iogrecent®

N
e
I
(=]
()

e nireeusa cem
O Caution: Keap out of ruoch o
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Nourishing, “98% Naturally Derived”
Avocado o — e o
Enriched

\7/58%

Good for your skin!

ABHR Moisture.
Foet and ser smooth skin

'NOURISH

by NATURE™
NOURISHING
= | L™ ey 1 LR, s ke Lt
989’0 2°/o nor arin, Acobet Denat, Cesearyt
- l ad Al ik te/Copeote, Cocogyenses, Glyceryl
:.o-n“- 5!: Dicapeyly) Ether, Persen Ceotissina (vacosol

yeeopy! Starch Phosphate, Cetyl Poimitete,
Giycery' Steorie. Sodum Ceteuryl
AYOCADO enmcuso .

Sultote, Xarthon Gom, Crkc Acd,
e iyt Ghom HdreayoratapMrane,
Body Lotion - Benipl alcoho, Finytheegighycesin,

Frogrance,
" sl "“ﬁkwcm
e o
5 =
/5 : e revm.
< _2 (et

SQut! P——
't‘, ——C) - Coution: Keep out of reach of
—'° Chidran. for el use ooy,
3 Aol Contact with epes. STop USe
I inanonsimion

169 FL. OZ.500mL ———— el

Ingredients

Water, Glycerin, Alcohol Denat., Cetearyl Alcohol,
aprylate/Caprate, Cocoglycerides, Glyceryl
Stearate SE, Dicaprylyl Ether, Persea Gratissima
(Avocado) Oil, Hydroxypropyl Starch Phosphate,
Cetyl Palmitate, Glyceryl Stearate, Sodium Ceteary!
Sulfate, Xanthan Gugn, Citric Acid, Caprylyl Giycol,
Hydroxyoc henone, Benzyl Alcohol,
xylglvcerin Fragrance
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Hydrating, Aloe
Enriched

“98% Naturally Derived
Ingredients”

\7/58%

Good for your skin!

4BHR Mo 3
Feel ond see smooth skin.

NOURISH
by NATURE™

HYDRATING

Alcchal Danot. Coco-

u,u,—a.,;m.xs crch Phosghote, Ceteory| Acorol, Vesetoble
0!, Mow Dorbodensis Leot Aice - Powder, - Sodium

Coteoryl Sulfote, Citric Acid,
Benzy Aicohol Ethyisenytgiycerin

ALOE ENQICKED

HMM
Costion: Keep ot of reach of
chiddeen, For enternel use orfy.
Aroid COPROCE with dyes S2ep wse
o
s
169 FL. OZ. S500mL — o],
|ngredie| 1its

Water, Glycerin, Alcohol Denat.,
—Coco-Caprylate/Caprate, Glyceryl Stearate SE,
Dicaprylyl Ether, Hydroxypropyl Starch Phosphate,
Cetearyl Alcohol, Vegetable Oll, Aloe Barbadensis
Leaf Juice Powder, Sodium Ceteary| Sulfate, Citric
Acid, Benzyl Alcohyffhylhexylglycerln, Fragrance
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Nivea Naturally Good Products

4.| Micellar Water, “98% of Natural Origin”
Organic Aloe
Vera

+98% natural

%
3 Eg, origin ingredients

(@

NATURALLY
4 GOOD

/‘ MICELLAR WATER %
ACANIC ALOE VERA

(9) |
B

*Vegan formula

+97% recycled bottle

* Organic aloe vera

Pty

(=)

W

PRODUCT DETAILS

NIVEA Naturally Good Micellar Water combines the reliable and effective make-up removal you love with trusted gentle *natural origin ingredi-
ents, The caring formula Is Vegan with refreshing Organic Aloe Vera to gently cleanse, refresh and moisturise your skin, The Miceliar technology
acts like a magnet to effectively sweep away long lasting make-up, dirt and impurities. For deeply cleansed, healthy-looking and fresh feeling
skin. The packaging is made from 97% recycled plastic! The natural micellar water sultable for daily use. Dermatologically & ophthalmologicaily
approved How to use: Soak a cotton pad and gently wipe over your face, removing make-up in seconds. For best results moisturise your skin af-
ter cleansing with NIVEA Naturally Good Day & Night creams. Product Benefits: - Removes make-up, dirt & impurities, - 98% Natural origin ingre-
dients formula Micellar water « Bottle made from 97% recycled plastic + With refreshing Organic Aloe Vera

WARNING:
Ensure eyes and lips are closed during application

Item Number 87148 (87148-06800-20)

LIST OF INGREDIENTS © SPECIAL INGREDIENTS

Included:

Aqua, Alcohol Denat, Pentylene Glycol, Glycerin, Aloe Barbadensis
Leaf Juice Powder, Sorbitol, Decyl Glucoside, Sodium o, ~7
Cocoamphoacetate, Caprylyl Glycol, Hydroxyacetophenone, Sodium \‘Cf;
Chloride

—

ORGANIC ALOE VERA
Active Ingredient: Aloe Vera
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.| Micellar Face

Wash, Organic
Aloe Vera

“99% of Natural Origin”

¥ NATURALLY B3
GOOD y

i MICELLAR FACE WASH .
ANIC ALOE VE
g

Gently Cleanses & Purifies

i
»}A»L
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Regenerating
Night Cream,
Organic Argan
Oil

“99% of Natural Origin”

= -

NEW » o - 9904 :Organic  Pleasant formuta 19

ol natural ocigin - Argan oIl * with precios Semnatira:
; 3 : ingredients** < jojoba and almand n‘dl":"

........ ; ; !oils grol

( N |VEA | 3 Ingredients for

\ | : : formula stability :

\ / . N o and safety :

; o‘ (\\Hk ....... p

NATURALLY

NATURALLY
GOOD |

REGENERATING
NS NIGHT CREAM

s, Glycerin, Cetenryl Aiconed, Promus
3 Ol Alcohed Derat | B tyecspermum
Paika Sutlar, Semmonésia Chinenss Seed O Dcapryt
- Eiher, Glyceryl Stoarate. Arganis Spinosy Kamed 04,
O Nt Aniar Seed O Toczshered, Ghycer Capryiat.
I ———S Sontium S earoyt Gltamate, Karehan Cum, Lewsir Acd,

WE ARE COMMITTED
to the beat care /«r yunr s :

‘) skin to regenerate diring the nighl —
; lwomyall'n feeling supple 1he next morming e Jotim lonleule, Live/goenn, Ao Aok
« For rested looking skin when you wake up 1R Aphs-tcmetiy e Benayf Akchet Caranid Pt
Apply every evening on cleansed skin, .
————mr——————

CREME DE NOITE —————— =i C[2)

I ee—————— T ey
= Ajuda a pele aregenerar-se durante a noite, delxando-a. —————el¥ UK Ltd. Birmingham. §37 703

macia e descansada na manha segulinte. "4 e e s SPh LA
- Aplique todas as noites no rosto impo. : o Carvans;
< 3" M&Mw.:lm Froe: 1800 103 023
ITY DERMATOLOGICALLY APPROVED, ®) Barcarens

SKIN COMPATIBIL

I'M RECYCLABLE!
FOR MORE INFORMATION,
CHECK UNDER THE PACKAGING

Anry question? TWe are there {nr‘yuu;

Q< Uk: 00800 49 401911 www,NIVEA.com

Art-No. 87133 et S
50 mE @ ine | m—

5
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.| Day Care

Radiance,
Organic Aloe
Vera

“99% of Natural Origin”

ORGANIC ALOE VERA

999% LA

OF NATURAL ORIGIN® IEDTR)(ToNTIN
inreoients RADIANCE

DAY CREAM

50 ml
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Day Cream “99% of Natural Origin” = ‘
Sensitive, Im ;
Organic

Chamomile j l

'NATURALLY
GOOD

ORGANIC CHAMOMILE

u BEN 1% t

4 DAY CREAM
R (2 s SENSITIVE

Ingredients: Aqua, Glycerin, Cetearyl Alcohol, Alcohol
Denat., Prunus Amygdalus Dulcis Oil, Simmondsia Chinensis
o Seed Oil. chap'ylgl Ether, Butyrospermum Parkii Butter,
Glyceryl Stearate, Caprylic/Capric Triglyceride, Chamomilla
—_— Recutita Flower Extract, Helianthus Annuus Seed Oil,
O Tocopherol, Maltodextrin, Glycer{l Caprylate. Sodium
—————————— 5{2310y1 Glutamate, Xanthan Gum, Levulinic Acid, Sodium
Levulinate, Decylene Glycol, Ethylhexylglycerin, p-Anisic
—9 Acid, Sodium Chloride

| s

——————
&
Made in Poland
B { UK Ltd., Birmingh B377ES
1 Australia Ltd. 4 Khartoum Rd.,

uD

North Ryde, NSW 2113 AU Toll Free: 1800 103 023
~F NZ Freephone: 0800 696 483

Belersdorf AG, D-20245 Hamburg
® = reg. tm. of Beiersdorf AG, Germany
PAP §7132.450FA02

Art-No.87132 J., J3 . v

50 mle S FSC FSC* C002324
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Day Cream, Anti | “99% of Natural Origin”
Age Organic
Burdock Extract
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‘ 9% NATURAL ORIGIN INGREDIENTS/99% INGREDIENSER AV
NATURLIGT URSPRUNG/OPRINDELSE/99% AINESOSISTA

o LUONNOLLISTA ALKUPERAA
PLEASANT SENSORY EXPERIENCE/OPTIMAL
HUDVARDSUPPLEVELSE/HUDPLEJEOPLEVELSE/AINESOSIA

S, MIELLYTTAVAN IHOTUNTEMUKSEN VARMISTAMISEKS!

JqoBaSQwOMAMOH-)AmOMMRNWM
+ Vitamin E + Xanthan Gum + Sodium
Levulinate + Levulinic Acid + Cetearyl Alcohol + Coco-
wm + Sodium w m * m

Ether + Sodium Chloride + Glyceryl Stearate + Glyceryl Caprylate.

.................... B I

ORGANIC BURDOCK EXTRACT/EKOLOGISKT/@KOLOGISK
Qg KARDBORREEXTRAKT/LUONNONMUKAINEN TAKIAISUUTE

.......................................... .....-.o-ou;ott

NODVENDIGE
STABILITET/19% MUITA AINESOSIA
g-m mﬁ;m" &M#mefw:nﬂ*

*
Mm fonone + Geraniol + Benzyl Alcohol + Perfume.

WMMMNMM :

mwam

WE ARE COMMITTED TO GIVE your shin the best care
- Visibly reduces fines & wrinkles in 2 weeks 4

:mmmmmmm'amww
- 100% Pleasant formula with precious jojoba and almond oil

Apply on clean, dry skin
Skin compatibility dermatologically tested and approved for sensitive skin.
NIVEA cares for your skin & planet
7y
=Y EREE
100% M, 0
recyclable =
jar E kS
www.NIVEA.com/sustainability

K& 0080049401011
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10. | Cleansing Wipes. | “97% of Natural Origin” e
Organic Aloe
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NATURALLY

GOOD

Cleansing Wipes
Organic Aloe Vero
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11

Body Lotion,
Natural Avocado

“98% of Natural Origin”

WITH
NATURAL ORIGIN

e

NATURALLY
| GOOD™

Body Lotion
NATURAL AVOCADO

98 2%

Iogedinrta of
patirlorkic
Neerned To Dry Sida

,,Q\ASYIc._
2
%
-
&
SQUESS
e

200mi

-

NIVEA
NATURALLY GOOD
AVOCADO BODY LOTION

NIVEA
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11/ 593ttty
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12.

Body Lotion,
Natural Lavender

“98% of Natural Origin”

(IR
v

o

L NATURALLY
' GOOD™

Body Lution
MATURAL LAVENDER

200l
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13.

Body Lotion,
Natural Oats

“98% Ingredients of
Natural Origin”

v

7 NATURALLY
,‘A'«-’-f GOOD™
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Body Lotion
< NATURAL OATS 7
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200ml
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14.

Deoderant, Bio
Aloe Vera

“95% Ingredients of
Natural Origin”

-

£

\ NATURALLYQ

‘ BIO ALOE VERA r
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INGREDIENTS OF numu&
A NATURAL ORIGIN® |
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15.

Deoderant, Bio
Green Tea

“95% Ingredients of
Natural Origin”

bz

NATURALLY
GOOD™
Deodorant

BIO GREEN TEA
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16.

Shower Gel, Lily
of the Valley &
Oil

“98% Ingredients of
Natural Origin”

WITH
NATURAL ORIGIN

\

\ NATURALLY
*GOOD™

\ Shower Gel
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& OIL
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17.

Shower Gel,
Orange Blossom
& Oil

“98% Ingredients of
Natural Origin”

WiTH
NATURAL ORIGIN
" _
—

\
\
NATURALLY
OD'M

\‘ GO
\ Shower Gel

T’ ORANGE BLOSSOM
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18.

Shower Gel,
Plum Blossom &
Oil

“98% Ingredients of
Natural Origin”

\ NATURALLY
\  GOOD™

\ Shower Gel
PLUM BLOSSOM
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19.

Shower Gel,
Jasmine &
Chamomile Scnet
& Touch of Bio
Oil

“98% Ingredients of
Natural Origin”

NATURALLY
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8% 24
SHOWIR GIL

X

\[ C
V‘ x';l".\ X
S //‘
<t’
300mi

¥ 4




Case 3:25-cv-03661-TSH Document 1

Filed 04/25/25

Page 68 of 78

Nivea Fresh Blends Products

20.

Refreshing
Shower,
Raspberry
Blueberry
Almond Milk

“90% Naturally Derived
Ingredients”

i

90%
NATURALLY

DERIVED
INGREDIENTS

WV
YEGAN
FORMULA
(NO AMIMAL

DERIVED
INGREDIENTS)

Refreshing Shows:

—{:;CS ll B[cmzl;

RASPBERRY
BLUEBERRY
ALMOND MILK

&)

98%

BIODEGRADABLE
FORMULA

)

il

L

—  100%

RECYCLED
BOTTLE

omdy Dhoded with nate:
‘ummclwumﬂum’:’

Seloiag you L

Shone you s, wnd The
planct . letle fese

B s mbotemonstin termrulat

0% naturily darved ingredients*
o W forrmula « no animal or

et Gernd ingred ot
Y futr made of 100% recycied #ET plasts

114 0D o0 s s ettt
e +150 ¥ 34 thew woturdl thte st
wem

www NIVEA.com

3 Gt Lasath Sulivte. Cossmnpuagyl Reas.
Ovicis OA Mo kdons e,

) NATURALLY
@ 9 DERIVED
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/" INGREDIENTS

Refreshing Shower

Fresh Blends
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BLUEBERRY ¢
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21.

Refreshing

Shower, Apricot
Mango Rice Milk

“90% Naturally Derived
Ingredients”

“91% Naturally Derived
Ingredients”

0
90%
NATURALLY
DERIVED
INGREDIENTS
\ ) 1]
Refreshing Shower ) l
tresh Blends
APRICOT "(‘
MANGO ¢
y , RICEMILK
""“ Forsoft. suppla shin b
VEGAN L N ‘ ]
FORMULA
(NO ANIMAL 300ml

DERIVED
INGREDIENTS)

.

&)

98%
BIODEGRADABLE
FORMULA

\\
\c\
A8

100%

RECYCLED
BOTTLE
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Fresh Blends Refreshing Shower
Qur shower offers a little joy for your skin & a little love for
the planet. The delightful & refreshing 98% biodegradable

formula® is lovingly
ents, fruit extracts & plant based milk. Yes, our botties may

Show your skin and the
planct o bittle bove

@ 98% biodegradable formula®

(P o0% naturaly derived ingredients**
-4 Vegan formula ~ no animal or
k animal derived ingredients
3 ,f,‘;\ Bottle made of 100% recycled PET plastic
* Asper OECD 301/302 or equivalent

methods
** Ingrechents from nature retain +50% of their natural state fter
beig processed, incloding w

g Www.NIVEA.com
W] Fresients: Aqua. Sodium Laureth Sulfate, W" :
Coco Gucosde, Sodiwm Chloride, Prunus. oL
angitera Indica Juice. Prunus Armeniaca Juice,
mn Bisabolol. Propylene Glycol. Sorbitol, Add,
€ Wlnmlyw .| G«In»l.l‘uloﬂ.?ﬂhln.ﬂl%
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PET Lo @
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Refreshing “90% Naturally Derived”
Shower _
Watermelon Mint | “91% Naturally Derived .@ 9 s

Coconut Milk Ingredients” INGREDIENTS+»

-ﬁ,
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23.

Refreshing
Shower, Banana

Acai Coconut
Milk

“Naturally Derived
Ingredients”

NATURALLY
DERIVED
INGREDIENTS®

A.

l Refreshing Shower

'f‘res‘/t B(eno{s

BANANA f l

o (o7,

coconuTmik  \ 19 /

300

I‘!feﬁ!ﬂtSlSustom/Ingredlentel(h:ot:nm: A

Sulfate, Cocamidopropy! Betaine, ocost

et Exroct Frogaria Ancngs osus e, Rubis o o
WFfultJu:ce,PmnusAmygdulusDul Glycerin, Propylene Giyco Sodun(i
Citric A ‘ Sodu?n);| Polynaphthaleness

. I_ zoate PotassmmSorboteParfumClm
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Nivea Lip Care

24.

Pearly & Pink Lip
Care

“98% Naturally Derived
Ingredients”

3X CARE

1. MOISTURE

2. REPAIR*

3. COLOR OR
SHIMMER

TWO (2) STICKS, NETWT 017 0Z 4.8g ea.

NIVEA®
cares for your
skin & planet

98% naturally derived
ingredients”

Formulated without preservatives,
phthalates & silicones

-

j

Y/

+ Naturally derived
oils & vitamin C&E

— "
With ethically
sourced
Shea Butter’

“Maeboe af th Giobal sk Alkante
and pariner of
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25.

Cherry Lip Care

“98% Naturally Derived
Ingredients”

o N\,
‘ / \

(NIVEA )

98% I \
3X CARE With ethically
o ZReeaRe sourced
- Ny Ruby Shea Butter
.\ - tinted
o\  +Cherry

CHERRY
LIP CARE

flavor

+ Naturally derived
oils & vitamin C & E

*FOR DRY LIPS

p e mm—

TWO (2) STICKS, NETWT 0170 4.8q ea.

NIVEA®
cares for your
skin & planet

98% naturally derived
ingredients™

Formulated without preservatives,
phthalates & silicones

@ Vegan formula™

MRS TG )b CWIONSEE) O TTIGAITY D TV VIR M
T INCHIINE TS DTN 0 10200NT5 O v et ho (oot o 7 Lok
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113 ) :
Qherry & Cream 98% Natuf,allly Derived 3X CARE
Lip Care Ingredients 1. MOISTURE '

2. REPAIR*
3. COLOR OR
_ NOURISH

| NIVEA
989l \

noturally derived ingredients
% skin sufe synthetic ingredients*

N
\®
\
|
|
/
/
/

/
/

/ With ethically
/" | sourced
Shea Butter

Untinted \
4

Rub
ﬂn(az l

+ Naturally derived
oils & vitamin C& E

“Maeribee of thi Giobal sha Alkanie
and pariner of AAK program in West Africa Kolo Nafoso.

TWO (2) STICKS, NETWT 0.170Z 4.8 ea.

NIVEA®
cares for your
skin & planet

98% naturally derived
ingredients”

Formulated without preservatives,
phthalates & silicones

%
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27.

Berry & Cherry
Lip Care

“98% Naturally Derived
Ingredients”

3X CARE

1. MOISTURE \

2. REPAIR* 4 \ @

3. COLOR ‘ (/ \

= | NIVEA |
98 %

naturolly derived ingredients

& 2% 3Kin s0f3 syrenctic iagrodionts® CR

e
With ethically
sourced
Shea Butter’

Vegan formula™

Burgund;
[ inter.yi l

+ Naturally derived
oils & vitamin C& E

TWO (2)STICKS, NETWT 0702 4 8gea.

“Maemibee af thi Giobal sha Albanie
and pariner of AAK program im West Africa Kolo Nafoso.

o animal dered Ingeedients

NIVEA®
cares for your
skin & planet

98% naturally derived
ingredients™

Formulated without preservatives,
phthalates & silicones

@ Vegan formula™

9

2L O
L T P
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28.

Moisture Lip
Care

“99.5% Naturally
Derived Ingredients”

B

3X CARE

1. MOISTURE

2. REPAIR*
3. NOURISH

NIVEA

MOISTURE
MOISTURE

MOISTURE
LIP CARE

LY

IR DRY LIPS

TWO (2) STICKS, NET WT0.1707 4.8 g ea.
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NIVEA®
cares for your
skin & planet

99.5% naturally derived
ingredients”

Formulated without
e preservatives, phthalates,
silicones, & dyes

%

With ethically
sourced
Shea Butter’

+ Naturally derived
oils & vitamin C & E

“Mermioer ofthe Clobal sheg Allance
And pariner of AAK pmorm InWest Afrca
Koo Nilwo.

'g 0 mojority of thelf
ents are included to maintain the
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29.

Strawberry Lip
Care

“98% Naturally Derived
Ingredients”

Page 78 of 78

1. MOISTURE

2. REPAIR*
“OLOR
Red
tinted

\

NIVEA

STRAWBERRY

STRAWBERRY
LIP CARE

Shoa Butty

TWO (2) STICKS, NETWT 0.170Z 4.8 eq.

NIVEA®
cares for your
skin & planet

98% naturally derived
ingredients™

Formulated without preservatives,
phthalates & silicones

Vegan formula™

5115 )b CWIONSER) O TTVIGATY D TV INIELIE Cromacii

CSICHE TS 1Y DTN 10 105000E S £ ) e o T e, Tefiow 5.L.ong

TN O gt

With ethically
sourced
Shea Butter’

J

~ +Strawberry
flavor

Source

k‘:uwwed
Bty CoR TR Tk (6] Bear
Tocopherol (Vitarnin £)

Palm Oil

*Naturally Derivedingredients have und
3l m ar structure. Skin sof
he product. (Flavor, Yello
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